

Contents

Welcome to the new PixEdit Office!
Open, save and print documents5
Open menu5
Open with "drag and drop"6
Open documents with PixEdit Office as the default program in Windows
Save
Print6
Main window and functions8
Pages view
Right-click menu
Copy pages8
Cut pages8
Paste pages9
Delete pages9
Extract pages9
Turn pages9
Attachments view9
Bookmarks view10
Main view11
Main menu11
Document info11
Home12
Back/Undo12
Forward12
Сору12
Cut12
Paste12
Edit12
Turn Pages12
Turn Pages Left13
Turn Pages Right13
Turn Pages Upside Down13
Text13
Search13
Smart search14

	Search by category	14
	Search with dictionary	15
	Search with advanced AI	16
	Redaction	16
	Markup text / Markup area	16
	Markup properties	17
	Overlay text and use of labels	
	Apply	19
	Mark search results	20
	Markup colored areas	20
	Mark entire page	20
	Text search	21
	Redaction properties	21
	Remove all visible and hidden markup when saving a redacted document	21
	Remove all searchable text when saving a redacted document	21
(Comments	21
	Note	21
	Rectangle	21
	Ellipse	21
	Text highlighting	22
	Text underlining	22
	Text strikethrough	22
	Comments tab	22
(Graphics	22
	Crop	23
	Insert as bitmap	23
	Insert as object	23
	Cancel	23
	Leave source	23
	Transparent mode	23
	Signature	23
	Scan	24
	Sign	24

Welcome to the new PixEdit Office!

The product will provide you with a new user experience with an intuitive and user-friendly interface that makes it easy to navigate. The product uses Microsoft's latest frameworks for Windows applications and design guidelines.

PixEdit Office has something called a Backstage. It is this view that allows you to open, save, print and share documents, as well as change settings. In the Backstage view, you can find options such as:

- Open documents
- Save documents

Open menu

- Change the program's settings
- Scan documents if this version of the product supports it

After starting PixEdit Office, the program starts in the Backstage view. You will see that the user guide refers to that view in the documentation.

PixEdit Office comes packaged as an MSIX and can be installed on Windows 10 or 11.

Open, save and print documents

PixEdit Office has several options for opening documents.

\bigcirc	🖹 😕 - 🔍 - PixEdit Office				
≡		Ор	en		
⊜		Ŀ	Recent	Latest	Remove All
6	Open	l.	This Computer	Older	
B	Save as	4	Google Drive	Recent Places	
Ð	Print	-	OneDrive		
Ξ	Settings	۹	SharePoint		
?	About	¥	Dropbox		
		D	Browse		

From PixEdit Office's Open menu in the Backstage view, the following options will be presented:

- the most recent documents you have opened
- older documents that have been previously opened
- recent locations you have retrieved documents from

You also have the option to navigate locally on your computer with the built-in system under This PC to find documents.

You can open and work with documents directly from a number of different cloud services as shown in the image above.

Browse will open the standard Windows open dialog.

Open with "drag and drop"

You can open documents in PixEdit Office by dragging them directly into the applications Backstage. With an already opened document you can also drop any files into the application Pages view.

This can be done directly from the Windows folder structure or from other applications that allow you to drag documents.

Open documents with PixEdit Office as the default program in Windows

In Windows you can choose which program should open file types by default.

With Windows 11 you can find this under Settings -> Apps -> Default apps -> Choose defaults by file type. Here you can choose PixEdit Office to be default for opening PDF documents.

Save

Although PixEdit Office can save documents in different file formats, it is recommended that you use the PDF or PDF/A file format. The reason for this recommendation is that document properties such as PDF comments and hidden searchable text can only be saved in PDF variants. If you save your documents in a different file format, you may risk losing things, such as:

- Encryption
- Hidden OCR text
- PDF comments
- PDF bookmarks
- Other PDF-specific features

Also note that PDF documents that are originally "born" digitally - that is, not scanned - and are saved in file formats other than PDF, such as TIFF, JPG or CALS, often take up much more storage space. When PixEdit Office saves from PDF to PDF/A, the program will always try to retain as much digitally born content as possible.



By selecting the Save As menu option, you will be presented with options to save the document to the desired file location. These are the same options as when opening a document explained above.

Print

PixEdit Office allows you to print documents. The menu option for this can be found in the program's Backstage view.

🗇 Print

By clicking the Print menu option, PixEdit Office will display the following print dialog.

ScanTestCloudPDFA.pdf - Print	▲ 2 / 19 ► □	×
Printer		
NPI2ABC20 (HP Color LaserJet MFP 🛛 🗸	Under følger beskrivelse om hvordan håndtere enkle fell på våre systemer.	
+ Add a printer	Windows 2012 Servere Det står en brukenveledning hvordan finne startmenyen, hvordan starte en 2003/2012 server på nytt på slutten av dette dokumentet.	
Orientation	Strømbrudd Ved stømbrudd vil de virtuelle serveren tas ned på en sikker melke, dette skjer etter ca 15 minutter. Det betyr at om stømmen er bort i mindre en 21 Simulter vil alle de virtuelle serverne fortsatt	
🗅 Portrait 🗸	være oppe, og det er ikke nødvendig å gjøre noe når strømmen kommer tilbake. Hvis strømbruddet varer lengre vil de virtuelle serveren slås av, og Hyper-V serverne slås av til slutt.	
Paper size	Hvordan få igang systemene: - - - - - - - - - - - - -	
A4 8.27" x 11.69"	 - of derive type inmoustic - Statterfe du der ander Hyper-V serveren. - Gi den et par minutter. - Start så den lille PC en som står ved siden av de to Hyper-V serverne våre. 	
Scaling	Hyper-V serverne starte automatisk opp alle de virtuelle serverne som står i listen over. Det tar noen minuter før alt er oppe igjen. - Restart din PC og se om du får kontakt med mail, dokumenter, databaser	
Shrink to page size ~	Internett Det kan være flere årsaker til at Internet ikke fungerer. Her er noen ting du kan gjøre for å finne ut hva som er feil.	
Pages	 Sjekk at begge Hyper-V serverne er slått på (blått lys i displayet) Sjekk at brannveggen merket ef ordriner EortHWIF 60C+ er slått på og at lamper i front lyser og blinker: Sjekk og at at værker og slått på og at lamper i front 	
All pages ~ ~	 Ta strømmen på branneggen, og vent neen minutter før då kobler till strøm igjen. Prøv om internet fungerer Sjekk om router i rom ved utgangen er på og lamper hjørt den henger på venstre siden i rommen). Sjekk ogst av sixtichen i slavet er på Pass på at mobilit fer koblet fra VUAN, bruk den till surle på siden <u>sover pixedit com</u> (da er du på stistjell, Or mån vikke så er det nen internet fiel. 	
Copies	 King sand riprid sredband og be de sjekke routeren. 	
1 ^ ~		
Collation		
Let the app change my printing preferences	Print Cancel	

In this print dialog you can change all the standard options for a printout.

Such as Portrait or Landscape page orientation and choosing the correct Paper Size. Under the Scaling option you have several options where, for example Fit Page Size will adapt the data for each individual page to the given paper size. This is the standard option for scaling. You can also choose Actual Size which means that a document will not be scaled and will be printed in its original size.

There are also options to print the Entire Document or a desired Number of Pages. In addition, you can choose the number of copies and how multiple copies should be sorted when printing.

By clicking on the More Settings option at the very bottom of the list of settings you will be able to specify even more settings for your printout. Such as Color Mode, Paper Type and possibly which paper tray the printer should draw paper from.

When you have selected the printer and the correct settings, press the Print button to print the current document.

Main window and functions



The main window of PixEdit Office looks like this. This is where you will mainly work with your documents.

Pages view

The Pages view shows you all the pages in the document as thumbnails. This view allows you to zoom in and out to view more pages in a smaller scale or vice versa. You can use CTRL + mouse wheel or the lever at the bottom of the window to zoom. This Page view gives you a very good overview of the document.

Right-click menu

By right-clicking on one of the pages you get the following options:



Copy pages

This option will copy selected pages. Shortcut key Ctrl + C.

Cut pages

This option will cut selected pages. Shortcut key Ctrl + X.

Paste pages

This option will paste pages or graphics located in the Windows clipboard. Keyboard shortcut Ctrl + V.

Delete pages

This menu item will delete selected pages

Extract pages

This option will extract selected pages to a new document and present this in a separate window.

Turn pages

This option will turn the selected pages. Right, left or upside down.

Attachments view

PixEdit Office can display any attachments that are embedded in a PDF document. This is called a PDF Portfolio and can consist of several files that are combined into an integrated PDF unit. The files in a PDF Portfolio can be of a variety of file types that have been created in different applications.

The screenshot below shows a random selection of attachments in a PDF Portfolio.



If the attachment is a known file type for PixEdit Office, it can be opened by clicking the Open Attachment button. The attachment will then open in a new window. If the attachment is an unknown file type, PixEdit Office will attempt to start the program that Windows has associated with this file type.

By clicking the information icon, PixEdit Office will display details about the attachment.

Name	PixEdit.nor.pdf
Modified	3/28/2022 2:34:24 PM
Size	1.91 MB

Here you can see the attachment's full name, when the file was last modified and the file size.

It is also possible to save a specific attachment as a separate file. This can be done by clicking the Save Attachment button. You will then be presented with a standard dialog to save the file to the desired location.

If you want to remove an attachment from a PDF Portfolio, click the Delete Attachment button

You can add any file attachment to a PDF Portfolio, but keep in mind that there are restrictions if you want to save to a PDF/A variant. Only PDF/A-3b supports all types of file attachments, while PDF/A-2b only supports PDF/A attachments. If you save your PDF Portfolio to standard PDF, all types of attachments are also allowed.



Click the icon to browse to add one or more files to your PDF Portfolio.

Bookmarks view

Bookmarks simplify navigation in PDF documents. Bookmarks act as a table of contents and make it easy for the reader of a PDF document to find the parts of the document that are of interest. Bookmarks are displayed on the left side of the main window in PixEdit Office.

Clicking on a bookmark takes you immediately to the page (and position on the page) that the bookmark points to. Note that bookmarks can only be saved in PDF or PDF/A format. For example, if you import a TIFF document and add bookmarks, you must save the document in PDF format to retain the bookmarks.

DD Pages	∏ [≡] Bookmarks	Attachments
Search		
Welcome to the	new PixEdit Office!	
 Open, save and 	print documents	
Open menu		
Open with "d	rag and drop"	
Open docum program in W	ents with PixEdit Offic /indows	e as the default
Save		
Print		
 Main window ar 	nd functions	
> Pages view		
Attachments	view	
Bookmarks vi	ew	
Main window	,	
> Main menu		

Main view

The main window is the window where you mainly work and read documents. You can zoom in and out of this window to your own preferences. You can use CTRL + mouse wheel or the lever at the bottom right to zoom.



These functions are used to zoom the documents to a predefined size.

- 1. 1:1 This selection will give the actual size of the document.
- 2. This option will scale the document, so it fills the entire screen from page to page.
- 3. This option will adjust the scaling, so you see the entire page. If the document is taller than it is wider, it will be adjusted from top to bottom and vice versa.

IVI	a	In	m	e	nu	

File Home Edit Text Redaction Comments Graphics Signature

This menu shows the different main functions in PixEdit Office.

To the right of the main functions, you can see a sign indicating whether the opened document is according to the PDF/A standard.

PDF/A

This badge only appears for PDF documents and if the document is according to a PDF/A variant. If you want to edit such document, you must confirm this by clicking on the PDF/A sign and then click Enable editing button.



Document info

With an open document in PixEdit Office, you will see a symbol marked "i" on the far right of the main menu.

i

By pressing this button, you will be presented with all relevant information about the current document.

General	Description
-	
File	Arkivloven 2.pdf
Created	6/18/2025 10:18:59 AM
Modified	6/18/2025 10:26:52 AM
Format	PDF Version: 1.7
PDF Version	1.7
PDF Standard	PDF/A-2b
ISO Standard	ISO 19005-2:2011
Creator	PixEdit Version 8.6.0.6, SN 222-00002-02, KEY Nxxx
Producer	Sikri AS, PixToolsLib Version 2.11.6.1
Pages	7
Page Size	A4
	210 x 298 mm
	8.3 x 11.7 in

Home

ッマー (C Copy X Cut 「 Paste

The home menu shows the following

Back/Undo

This button will undo your last actions. It will give you a list of performed actions so you can easily skip several steps. Hotkey for this function is Ctrl + Z

Forward

This button will undo any undo steps that you have performed. It will give you a list of performed actions so you can easily skip several steps. Hotkey for this function is Ctrl + Y

Сору

This button will copy selected pages, text or selected graphics to the clipboard. Hotkey for this function is Ctrl + C

Cut

This button will cut selected pages or selected graphics to the clipboard. Hotkey for this function is Ctrl + X

Paste

This button will paste previously copied pages, text or graphics. Hotkey for this function is Ctrl + V

Edit

Turn Pages

The Edit menu shows the following

Turn Pages

This button will give you a list of the following reverse operations

Turn Pages Left

This selection will flip selected pages -90 degrees. Hotkey Ctrl + Shift + L

Turn Pages Right

This selection will turn selected pages +90 degrees. Hotkey Ctrl + Shift+ R

Turn Pages Upside Down

This selection will turn pages 180 degrees. Hotkey Ctrl + Shift + U»

Text

The text menu displays the following functions.

Search

This button will open a new window where you can perform different types of searches, text search and smart search (AI search and dictionary)

Smart Search		
Off Off		
Enter search text	Search	Options ~

You can also set some search Options before you start a search.



Here you can see which options can be specified when searching.

The search results will appear as a separate box on the right in the program. And the search hits will be highlighted in the document in the main window.



You can click on the search results in the list on the right and the main window will automatically navigate you to the page and show you the result in the document.

The shortcut for search is Ctrl + F. This will open a window to the right where you can search for information.

Smart search	
Smart Search	
On	
Select Categories \vee	Search by Category
Edit Dictionary ~	Search with Dictionary

In the text search view, there is a button for setting the Smart search mode. If you flip this button, the search window will change.



With the Search by category feature you can select from a selection of categories that the AI engine will search for in the document. To select categories, click Select categories. After making your selections, click Search by category. The result will appear as a regular search result.

At the bottom of Select category there is an option Include only results with a hit rate higher than (%).

Include only results with a confidence higher than (%)

This option allows you to specify which results should be displayed at a given accuracy level. Setting a lower accuracy level will result in more hits. Setting a higher accuracy level will result in fewer hits, but also likely fewer false positives.

Search with dictionary

	On	
	Select Cate	egories Search by Category
	Edit Diction	nary ~ Search with Dictionary
Export		
Dictionary	Expressions	Al queries

With this feature you can create your own word lists that can be used in searches for information. You can enter words as free text or use search expressions (RegEx) to find information.

	Ignore Case	+ ~	
Word 1		Ū	
Word 2		Ŵ	

Select the dictionary tab to add your search words and phrases. Once you have entered a search term, press the (+) sign to add it to the dictionary. You can also edit a previously added phrase by selecting it from the list, perform your changes and press the (\checkmark) symbol to add the change. You can have as many words and phrases as you want.

Dictionary	Expressions	Al queries	
Click here to get he	lp on search expressions	Flags	
Click here to get he Name	lp on search expressions Search Expression (RegEx)	Flags	

To add a RegEx search, tap Search Expression. Here you add a desired name to make it easier to identify what the search expression does. Then you enter the search expression and any Options. Tap the (+) sign to add it. You can have as many search expressions as you want in the list.

Search with advanced AI

In PixEdit Office, you can use modern AI to find information in a document. This can be useful to identify and retrieve information in long texts, but also when redacting information.

Export Import		
Dictionary	Expressions	Al queries
Click here to get help	on custom AI queries	
Name	Query	
Person	Find all personal names	+ ~
Person		ŵ

Note that you must have the 'Advanced AI' feature to be able to define AI queries.

When advanced AI is available, you can define as many AI queries as you want. Each AI query is given a name, and this is used to tag each search result when the query is used to search information. Click on the link shown in the screenshot above to help define AI queries.



Once the dictionaries are created, you can export them to a JSON file, which can either be distributed to others or for your own use later. In this way, you can create multiple dictionaries that can be imported for different needs.

Once the dictionaries are created or imported, press Search with dictionary to search the open document. If the dictionary contains both free text words and search terms, both searches will be performed. The results will appear as regular search results.



With this menu you can select between marking text or an area for redaction. If the document does not have searchable text and you select Mark Text, the program will automatically suggest performing text recognition. Click yes to this prompt if you would like to generate text. After this operation is complete, text can be marked for redaction.

If you select Markup area, you can drag out rectangles to mark for redaction.

By default, the markup will have a red outline and a yellow transparent fill color. You can change the appearance settings by right-clicking on the markup.

Markup properties

This right-click menu applies to all types of markups, but it will change properties depending on the type of markup selected. For example, only redaction markups have capabilities to set Overlay text.



Fill – The color that fills the interior of a markup.

Outline – The color of the outline/borders.

Text – The color of any defined overlay text.

Redaction – The color of the redacted area.

Opacity – Specifies the level of transparency of the markup.

In addition, you can change the Author and Subject for the current markup.

By clicking the Set as Default button, the current properties will be set as the default for this type of markup.

② Default properties
 ③

You can also click Default Properties to set these in advance before inserting markup.

Overlay text and use of labels

Overlay text only applies to bullet points. The purpose of this text is to help the reader understand what information is below the protected area. For example, if you have an agreement between two parties, you can write "party" and "counterparty" on top of the protected areas. This will make it easier to read the document and understand what information is protected.

To specify overlay text effectively, you can define labels that can be quickly selected for each bullet point.

🖉 Edit Labels

Press the Edit Labels button. In this dialog you will have the opportunity to define label groups and the labels that should be in each group.

Name			Label	
Agreement	×	+ ~	Party	+ ~
Agreement		迎	Party	Ŵ
Legislation		Ŵ	Countparty	Û

You add a label group by clicking on the plus symbol. And you can edit the name by changing it and then clicking on the check mark. Once you have defined a label group, you can add labels to this group.

In the example above, we have created two Label groups, one called Agreement, and one called Legislation. In the label group Agreement, we have added the labels 'Party' and 'Counterparty'.

In the example below, we have marked up text for redaction in two random paragraphs in a document. With one markup, we have selected overlay text with the label 'Party' and for the other paragraph, we have selected the label 'Counterparty'.



By hovering the mouse pointer over a redaction markup, PixEdit Office will display a preview of what the redacted area will look like. Shown in the figure above. This can be useful for inspecting how any overlay text and colors look in the final result.

Appearance	Overlay text	
Labels		
Agreement Party Countparty		
Search expressions MyRegEx		
Al queries FindPerson		
✓ Apply ×	Cancel	t

The dialog above shows how the different labels can be set for a selected redaction markup.

By flipping the button called Labels, a textbox will appear where you can enter custom text. This is useful if there is no useful labels, and you can then quickly enter text that will appear on top of the redacted area.

Custom text	
Example of an overlay text	×

Search expressions - If you have defined search expressions and added them to PixEdit Office's dictionary, they can be used as overlay text. All defined terms will be listed here.

Al queries – If you have defined Al queries and added them to the dictionary, they will be listed here and can be used as overlay text.

Note – To be able to define AI queries you will need the 'Advanced AI' product feature.

If you do not want search expressions or AI queries to be added to the label overview, you can turn this off at the bottom of the Edit Labels dialog. Shown here:



Apply This button will apply redaction on all markups marked for redaction



When you click Apply you will get a warning as shown here:

Warning		
You are about to permanently remove redaction. This operation cannot be u continue ?	e all content that has been marked for ndone. Are you sure you want to	
I understand, please don't show t	his warning again	
OK Cancel		

When you press Ok on this dialog, all markups will be redacted, and you cannot undo this operation. If you want to return to the starting point, you can close the opened document without saving and then start over.

Mark search results

This button will be available if a search has returned results. The function will then mark all search hits for redaction.

ABC Mark Search Results

Markup colored areas

This function will find text that is highlighted with color in the document (This is text that is highlighted with color) and mark the area for clipping.



The Markup colored areas button has a drop-down menu as shown in the image above. Here you will be presented with a set of colors that are the same as those you can use in Microsoft Word to highlight text with color. If you want a different specific color, this can be defined in the color picker at the bottom.

Mark entire page

This function will mark the entire selected page for redaction.

Mark entire page

Text search

This function is the same as the one under the main Text menu. It is placed under the Redaction menu because the function is widely used in together with redaction. Read more about text search <u>here</u>

Redaction properties

In the Backstage view under the Settings menu option, you will find two Settings that are relevant to redaction.



Remove all searchable text when saving a redacted document

Remove all visible and hidden markup when saving a redacted document This option will remove all digital markups that are on the page being redacted.

Remove all searchable text when saving a redacted document This option will remove all searchable text on pages that have been redacted in a document.

Comments

💭 Note
Rectangle
O Ellipse
► 🕂 Text Highlight
U Text Underline
S Text Strikethrough

The Comment menu provides a drop-down with the following tools

Note

After the Note has been selected, you can click in the main window where you want to insert the note. After a Note has been inserted into the document, the user will be presented with a dialog to add information. You can also right-click to open the properties dialog or delete. You can hold down the mouse button and move the Note to the desired position.

Rectangle

After the rectangle is selected, you can click in the main window to then drag a rectangle where you want to place it. Then you can right-click on the rectangle to make any settings. You can also grab the rectangle to move it to the desired position. And you can adjust the size by dragging the handles.

Ellipse

With the ellipse tool selected, you can click in the main window and then drag an ellipse where you want to place it. You can then right-click on the ellipse to make any settings. You can also grab the ellipse to move it to the desired position. And you can adjust its size by dragging the handles.

Text highlighting

With Text highlighting you can select text to highlight. By right clicking the inserted markup you can change the color and color density. To highlight text, you must have a document that has digital text or has been processed with text recognition (OCR).

Text underlining

With text underlining you can select text that will be underlined. By right clicking the inserted markup you can change the color and color density. This feature requires a document that has digital text or has been processed with text recognition (OCR).

Text strikethrough

The Text strikethrough tool allows you to select text that will be struck through. By right clicking on the markup, you can change the color and color density. This feature requires a document that has digital text or has been processed with text recognition (OCR).

Comments tab

To the right of the main view in PixEdit Office, there is a tab called Comments. If you don't have this window in front of you, you can bring it up by clicking on the arrow located in the right margin in the middle of the page of the application. In the comments tab, you will see all your digital markups from the selections above, or that already exist in the document. Here you can enter comments on the markups as well as edit and optionally delete them.

Graphics

If you move the mouse pointer over to the main window after selecting graphics, you will see that the mouse pointer has changed. You can now drag a rectangle around any desired graphics in the main window. When you release the mouse pointer, a new menu will appear.



It is now possible to copy the selected graphics, cut out, erase, crop or add the selected graphics as a signature if there is a signature that is marked.

By dragging the handles, the size of the rectangle can be changed.

By left clicking inside the rectangle of the selected graphic, the mode of the handles will change to rotate the document. The symbol in the middle of the rectangle shows which "mode" the rectangle is in.

The rectangle can also be moved around on the page. When a move operation is performed and you release the mouse button, a new menu will appear



Crop

This function will cut away all graphics outside the selected area and resize the page to this.

Insert as bitmap

This function will paste the bitmap into existing graphics

Insert as object

This function will insert the graphic as an object. The object will be editable until you save the document. The following message will then appear on the user's screen:

Warning	
Saving the document will permanent document. This cannot be undone. A	tly apply all edits and objects to your Are you sure you want to save?
- Funderstand, please don't show	uns warning again
ОК	Cancel

Cancel

Cancel any ongoing operation and the selected area.

Leave source

If this option is ticked, the selected graphics will be copied to the new position and leaving the original content intact.

Transparent mode

If this option is ticked, the selected graphic will become transparent after placement.

Signature

À Scan 🗸 🌈 Sign 🗸

The signature menu shows the following

Scan

With this feature you can scan your signature. You write your signature on a sheet of paper and then place the sheet in the scanner and press the Scan button. You will then get an image with your signature in the main window.

Sign

If you have added a signature, you will find it in the drop-down list under the Sign button. Click on the signature you want to sign with. The signature will be added to the main window on the selected page. The signature will be highlighted and can be moved and resized as desired.